PLANNING COMMITTEE 13 NOVEMBER 2014 7.30 - 10.25 PM



Present:

Councillors Dudley (Chairman), Brossard (Vice-Chairman), Mrs Barnard, Blatchford, Ms Brown, Davison, Finch, Finnie, Gbadebo, Heydon, Kensall, Mrs Phillips, Virgo and Worrall

Also Present:

Councillors Harrison and Turrell.

Apologies for absence were received from:

Councillors Angell, Mrs Angell, Birch, Leake and Thompson

59. Minutes

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Committee held on 16 October 2014 be agreed subject to Councillor Turrell being added as an attendee and signed by the Chairman.

60. **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest.

61. Urgent Items of Business

There were no urgent items of business.

62. Application 14/00511/FUL 75 Trevelyan, Bracknell

Change of use of amenity land to private garden enclosed by 2m high hedging to the side of the dwelling.

The Committee noted:

- The comments of Bracknell Town Council
- Seven letters of objection raising concerns around the proposed development impacting detrimentally on the character of the area, overshadowing, loss of light and the setting of an undesirable precedent.

Upon being put to the vote it was **RESOLVED** that the application be **APPROVED** subject to the following conditions:-

01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

- 02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the following approved plans received by the Local Planning Authority on 1 October 2014: drawing no. PL-03 Rev D REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.
- 03. The hedge as shown on the approved plans shall be retained at a height not exceeding 2m and shall thereafter be retained as such. If within a 5 year period of the completion of the development the hedge is removed, uprooted, or is destroyed or dies, it shall be replaced by plants of the same species and size as that originally planted at the same place REASON: In the interests of good landscape design and the visual amenity of the area.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, CSDPD CS7]

63. PS Application 14/00580/FUL 94 to 96 College Road, College Town, Sandhurst Erection of four no. 3 bedroom semi detached houses and one no. 4 bedroom semi detached house with associated parking and access.

A site visit was held on Saturday 8 November 2014 which was attended by Councillors Blatchford, Ms Brown, Brossard, Dudley, Gbadebo, Virgo and Mrs Phillips.

The Committee noted:

- The supplementary report of the Head of Development Management tabled at the meeting.
- The comments of Sandhurst Town Council
- 16 objections raising concerns around the proposed development impacting detrimentally on the character of the area and neighbour amenities, overdevelopment, increase in vehicle movements and lack of parking, impact on wildlife and the loss of trees. Further representations were received and included in the supplementary report.

The criteria for public speaking had been met in respect of this application and the Committee was addressed by the registered speakers Mr Weakley raising objections to the proposed development and Ms Jubb, the agent for the applicant.

Members expressed concern that the proposed two storey plots 1-3 by reason of their siting, massing and close proximity to the northern boundary would result in an unneighbourly form of development to the detriment of the amenities of the occupiers of 57-59 Academy Place.

A motion to **APPROVE** the recommendations of the Head of Development Management as set out in the report and on the supplementary report was moved and seconded. On being put to the vote the motion was **LOST**.

An alternative motion to **REFUSE** the application was moved and seconded. On being put to the vote the motion was **CARRIED**.

It was RESOLVED that the application be REFUSED for the following reasons:-

Reason 01:

The proposed two storey buildings on plots 1-3 by reason of their siting, massing and close proximity to the northern boundary would result in an unneighbourly form of development to the detriment of the amenities of the occupiers of 57-59 Academy Place. The development is therefore contrary to Policy CS7 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document and 'Saved' Policy EN20 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan.

Reason 02:

The proposed development would unacceptably increase the pressure on public open space, recreational facilities, and educational facilities. In the absence of a planning obligation in terms that are satisfactory to the Local Planning Authority, and which secure contributions towards open space, recreation and educational facilities and libraries, the proposal is contrary to Policies CC7 and NRM6 of the South East Plan, Policies R5 and M4 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan and CS6, CS8, CS14 and CS24 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document and to Supplementary Planning Document Limiting the Impact of Development (adopted July 2007) and Supplementary Planning Document Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance and Mitigation (adopted March 2012).

Reason 03:

The occupants of the development would put extra pressure on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area and the proposal would not satisfactorily mitigate its impacts in this respect. In the absence of a planning obligation to secure suitable avoidance and mitigation measures and access management monitoring arrangements, in terms that are satisfactory to the Local Planning Authority, the proposal would be contrary to Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan, Policy EN3 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan, Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document and the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance and Mitigation Supplementary Planning Document (2012).

64. Application 14/00844/FUL 49 Carnation Drive, Winkfield Row, Bracknell Erection of a two storey side extension following the part demolition of existing garage.

A site visit was held on Saturday 8 November 2014 which was attended by Councillors Ms Brown, Dudley, Gbadebo, Virgo and Mrs Phillips.

The Committee noted:

- The comments of Winkfield Parish Council
- Three objections from neighbours raising concerns around the proposed development was out of keeping with surrounding properties, would have insufficient parking and would be detrimental to the amenities of neighbouring properties.

Upon being put to the vote it was **RESOLVED** that the application be **APPROVED** subject to the following conditions:-

01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the following approved plans received by the Local Planning Authority on 26th September 2014:

JAH/02 (Rev C)

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

03. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall be of similar appearance to those of the existing dwelling.

REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, Core Strategy DPD CS7]

04. The first floor landing window in the east facing side elevation of the extension hereby permitted shall not be glazed at any time other than with a minimum of Pilkington Level 3 obscure glass (or equivalent). It shall at all times be fixed shut with the exception of a top hung openable fanlight.

REASON: To prevent the overlooking of neighbouring properties. [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20]

05. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no additional windows, similar openings or enlargement thereof shall be constructed at first floor level or above in the east facing side elevation of the extension hereby permitted except for any which may be shown on the approved drawing(s).

REASON: To prevent the overlooking of neighbouring property. [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20]

06. The areas for parking shown on the approved layout, including that within the garage, shall be retained for the use of the parking of vehicles at all times.

REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority's vehicle parking standards are met.

[Relevant Policy: BFBLP M9]

07. The garage doors hereby approved shall be of a roller shutter design. Any replacement or repair shall only be with a roller shutter type garage door.

REASON: To ensure that the garage is still accessible while a car is parked to the front of the property avoiding inappropriately parked cars comprising the communal reversing/turning area.

[Relevant Policy: BFBLP M9]

65. Application 14/00858/FUL Popeswood Garage and Hillcrest, London Road, Binfield

Erection of 11 no. terraced and semi-detached houses with garaging and landscaping following demolition of existing car sales building, car repair workshops and detached dwelling (Hillcrest).

The Committee noted:

- The supplementary report of the Head of Development Management tabled at the meeting.
- The comments of Binfield Parish Council
- Six letters of objection raising concerns around the proposed development impacting detrimentally on the character and appearance of the area, noise concerns, traffic and parking concerns, overshadowing, loss of privacy and concerns around the proposed development being overbearing. One letter of support had also been received.

Upon being put to the vote it was **RESOLVED** that the Head of Development Management be authorised to **APPROVE** the application upon the completion of planning obligations(s) under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 broadly relating, but not restricted to:-

- A) APPROVE the application upon the completion of planning obligation(s) under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 broadly relating, but not restricted to:-
- 01. Open space and recreation
 Built Sports facilities
 Primary and Nursery Educational Facilities
 Secondary Education
 Libraries
 Community Facilities
 Youth Facilities
 Thames Basin Heaths SPA
 Integrated Transport and Highways Safety Measures
 Secure Adoption of the Road

Dedication of Land to the Boundary

- B) APPROVE the application subject to the following condition(s):-
- 01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the following approved plans and documents

```
13-P946-LP received 29.07.14
13-P946-10.1B received 27.10.14
13-P946-10/B received 24.10.14
13-P946- 11/A received 01.10.14
13-P946- 12/A received 01.10.14
13-P946- 13/B received 24.10.14
13-P946- 15/B received 24.10.14
13-P946-16/ received 29.07.14
13-P946-17/B received 24.10.14
13-P946-18/A received 24.10.14
13-P946-19 received 24.10.14
```

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

03. No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, Core Strategy DPD CS7]

04. The first floor window in the east facing side elevation of the terrace dwelling hereby permitted on plot 5 shall not be glazed at any time other than with a minimum of Pilkington Level 3 obscure glass (or equivalent). It shall at all times be fixed with the exception of a top-hung openable fanlight.

REASON: To prevent the overlooking of neighbouring properties.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20]

05. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 or any Order revoking and re-enacting that order, no side facing windows at first floor level or above other than those already shown shall be inserted in the side elevations of dwellings hereby approved on plots 1, 5 and 11.

REASON: To prevent the overlooking of neighbouring properties.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20]

06. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until details showing the finished floor levels of the dwellings, garages and the levels of the roads hereby approved in relation to a fixed datum point have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of the character of the area. [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, Core Strategy DPD CS7]

- 07. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until comprehensive details of both hard and soft landscaping works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include: -
- a) Comprehensive planting plans of an appropriate scale and level of detail that provides adequate clarity including details of ground preparation and all other operations associated with plant and grass establishment, full schedules of plants, noting species, and detailed plant sizes/root stock specifications, planting layout, proposed numbers/densities locations.
- b) Details of semi mature tree planting.
- c) Comprehensive 5 year post planting maintenance schedule.
- d) Underground service and external lighting layout (drainage, power, communications cables, pipelines etc. indicating lines, manholes etc.), both existing reused and proposed new routes.
- e) Means of enclosure (walls and fences etc) including fencing that is permeable to badgers at the end of both the existing and propose badger corridors.
- f) Paving including pedestrian open spaces, paths, patios, proposed materials and construction methods, cycle routes, parking courts, play areas etc.

All planting comprised in the soft landscaping works shall be carried out and completed in full accordance with the approved scheme, in the nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) to the completion of the development or prior to the occupation of any part of the approved development, whichever is sooner, or as may otherwise be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All hard landscaping works shall be carried and completed prior to the occupation of any part of the approved development. As a minimum, the quality of all hard and soft

landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 4428:1989 'Code Of practice For General Landscape Operations' or any subsequent revision. All trees and other plants included within the approved details shall be healthy, well formed specimens of a minimum quality that is compatible with British Standard 3936:1992 (Part 1) 'Specifications for Trees & Shrubs' and British Standard 4043 (where applicable) or any subsequent revision. Any trees or other plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development, die, are removed, uprooted, are significantly damaged, become diseased or deformed, shall be replaced during the nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) with others of the same size, species and quality as approved, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

REASON: - In the interests of good landscape design, visual amenity of the area and biodiversity.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CSDPD CS1 and CS7]

08. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the submitted Pre-assessment Estimator and shall be retained in accordance therewith.

REASON: In the interests of sustainability and the efficient use of resources.

[Relevant Policy: Core Strategy DPD CS10]

09. Within one month of the first occupation of the development hereby permitted (or, where the development is phased, within one month of the first occupation of the final phase of that development), a Post Construction Review Report shall be carried out by an independent assessor licensed by the Building Research Establishment and a Final Code Certificate shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority which demonstrates that the development has been constructed to meet a minimum standard of level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes.

REASON: In the interests of sustainability and the efficient use of resources.

[Relevant Policy: Core Strategy DPD CS10]

- 10. The development shall not be begun until an Energy Demand Assessment has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall demonstrate:
- (a) that before taking account of any on-site renewable energy production the proposed development will reduce carbon dioxide emissions by at least 10% against the appropriate Target Emission Rate as set out in Part L of the Building Regulations (2006), and
- (b) that a proportion of the development's energy requirements will be provided from on-site renewable energy production (which proportion shall be 20%).

The buildings thereafter constructed by the carrying out of the development shall be in accordance with the approved assessment and retained in accordance therewith.

REASON: In the interests of the sustainability and the efficient use of resources.

[Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD Policy CS12]

11. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 or any Order revoking and re-enacting that order, no external lighting shall be installed within the frontages of plots 6-11 or attached to the fronts of plots 6-11, the side of plot 11 and carports that serve plots 8, 9, 10 and 11, except in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN15, EN20 and EN25]

- 12. No development shall take place until a working method statement for the protection of badgers during construction has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include details on:
- The retention of badger access during the works
- Details of methods to prevent badgers becoming trapped in trenches, open excavations, culverts or pipes
- The location for the storage of materials and equipment during construction
- Details of methods for ground works

The approved working method statement shall be performed, observed and complied with.

REASON: In the interests of nature conservation [Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1, CS7]

13. No removal of vegetation or building that may be used by breeding birds shall take place between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation and buildings or active birds' nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared or building demolished and provided written confirmation to the Local Planning Authority that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site.

REASON: In the interests of nature conservation [Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1, CS7]

14. The development shall not be begun until a scheme for the provision of bird and bat boxes (and other biodiversity enhancements), including a plan or drawing showing the location of these enhancements, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The approved scheme shall be performed, observed and complied with.

REASON: In the interests of nature conservation [Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1, CS7]

15. No dwellings shall be occupied until the existing accesses to the site have been closed and the footways/verges are provided over the closed accesses in accordance with details which have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; the footway/verge shall be retained thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety. [Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23]

16. No dwelling shall be occupied until a means of vehicular access to it has been constructed in accordance with details which have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety. [Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23]

17. No dwelling shall be occupied until a means of access to it for pedestrians has been constructed in accordance with details which have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of accessibility and to facilitate access by cyclists and/or pedestrians.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP M6, Core Strategy DPD CS23]

18. The gradient of private drives shall not exceed 1 in 12.

REASON: To ensure that adequate access to parking spaces and garages is provided.

[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23]

19. No dwellings shall be occupied until the associated vehicle parking, turning space and drainage has been surfaced and marked out in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The spaces shall not thereafter be used for any purpose other than parking and turning.

REASON: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate car parking to prevent the likelihood of on-street car parking which would be a danger to other road users.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP M9, Core Strategy DPD CS23]

20. The car ports hereby approved shall be retained for the use of the parking of vehicles at all times and, notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country (general Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no enlargements, improvements or alterations shall be made to the car port, and no gate or door shall be erected to the front of the car port, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking to prevent the likelihood of on-street parking which could be a danger to other road users.

[Relevant Policy: BFBLP M9]

21. No dwellings shall be occupied until secure and covered parking for bicycles has been provided in accordance with the approved drawings.

REASON: In order to ensure bicycle facilities are provided.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP M9, Core Strategy DPD CS23]

22. No gates shall be provided at the vehicular access to the site.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety. [Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23]

23. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until a scheme for offsite highway works showing access to the site from London Road and closure of the existing accesses has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The buildings provided by the carrying out of the development shall not be occupied until the off site highway works have been completed in accordance with the scheme.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

[Relevant Policy: BFBLP M4]

- 24. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until a scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, to accommodate:
- (a) Parking of vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
- (b) Loading and unloading of plant and vehicles
- (c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
- (d) Wheel cleaning facilities
- (e) Temporary portacabins and welfare for site operatives
- (f) Construction Management Plan

and each facility shall be retained throughout the course of construction of the development, free from any impediment to its designated use. No other areas on the site, other than those in the approved scheme shall be used for the purposes listed (a) to (d) above without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of amenity and road safety.

25. No development shall take place until a contaminated land Phase I report (Desk Top Study) has been carried out by a competent person to identify and evaluate all potential sources and impacts of land and/or groundwater contamination relevant to the site. The Desk Top Study shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11". Following approval of the Desk Top Study, a Phase II report (and intrusive site investigation) shall be carried out, if required by the Local Planning Authority, by a competent person to fully and effectively characterise the nature and extent of any land and/or groundwater contamination and its implications. The development shall not be begun until proposals for the method and extent of this site investigation have been agreed with the Local Planning Authority. The site investigation shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed proposals which shall be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11". REASON: The proposed development is located on a potentially contaminated site,

REASON: The proposed development is located on a potentially contaminated site, due to its historic land use. To ensure the development is suitable for its end use and the wider environment and does not create undue risks to occupiers of the site or surrounding areas.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN25]

26. Following completion of the desk top study and site investigation required by the above condition, a remediation scheme to deal with any contaminants identified must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include an implementation timetable, monitoring proposals and a remediation verification methodology. Development shall not be begun until the remedial scheme has been carried out.

Should any unforeseen contamination (i.e. contamination not identified in the desktop study and site investigation) be encountered during the development, the Local Planning Authority shall be informed immediately. The development shall cease until further investigation/remedial/protective works have been approved by the Local Planning Authority. The further investigation/remedial/protective works shall be carried out to agreed timescales and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing.

A Site Completion Report shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The report must detail the conclusions, actions taken and verification methodology at each stage of the works and shall include a sampling and analysis programme to confirm the adequacy of decontamination. An appropriately qualified person shall oversee the implementation of all remediation. The construction of buildings shall not commence until the investigator has provided a report, which shall include confirmation that all remediation measures have been carried out fully in accordance with the remediation scheme. The report shall also include results of the verification programme of post-remediation sampling and monitoring in order to demonstrate that the required remediation has been fully met. Future monitoring proposals and reporting requirements shall also be detailed in the report. If no contamination is encountered during the development, a letter confirming this fact shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority upon completion of the development.

REASON: To enable to the Local Planning Authority to ensure that appropriate measures are taken to avoid any threat which the proposed development might pose to health and safety and/or the environment.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN25]

- 27. The development hereby permitted (including any demolition) shall not be begun until details of a scheme (Working Method Statement) to control the environmental effects of the demolition and construction work has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:
- (i) control of noise
- (ii) control of dust, smell and other effluvia
- (iii) control of surface water run off
- (iv) site security arrangements including hoardings
- (v) proposed method of piling for foundations
- (vi) construction and demolition working hours
- (vii) hours during the construction and demolition phase, when delivery vehicles or vehicles taking materials are allowed to enter or leave the site

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme or as may otherwise be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN25]

28. No development shall take place until a scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the provision of the badger path shown on drawing no. 13-P946-10.1B. None of the dwellings hereby approved shall be occupied until the badger path has been provided in accordance with the approved scheme. The badger path shall thereafter be retained.

REASON: In the interests of nature conservation [Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1, CS7]

In the event of the S106 planning obligation(s) not being completed by 13th January 2015 the Head of Development Management be authorised to REFUSE the application on the grounds of:-

- 01. The proposed development would unacceptably increase the pressure on the transportation network, education facilities, community facilities, public open space, built sports facilities and libraries. In the absence of planning obligations in terms that are satisfactory to the Local Planning Authority, and which secure contributions towards the transportation network, education facilities, community facilities, public open space, built sports facilities and libraries, the proposal is contrary to Policy SA1 of the Site Allocations Local Plan, Policies CS6 and CS24 of the Bracknell Forest Core Strategy.
- 02. The occupants of the development would put extra pressure on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area and the applicants have not satisfactorily mitigated the development to comply with the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance and Mitigation Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2012. In the absence of a section 106 planning obligation to secure suitable mitigation measures, the proposal would therefore be contrary to Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan, Policy EN3 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan, Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document and to the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance and Mitigation Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2012.

66. Application 14/00898/FUL 36 Pakenham Road, Bracknell

Erection of a first floor extension to side elevation and single storey extension with canopy roof to front elevation.

The Committee noted:

- The comments of Bracknell Town Council
- One objection from a neighbouring property raising concerns around the proposed development leading to loss of light.

Upon being put to the vote it was **RESOLVED** that the application be **APPROVED** subject to the following conditions:-

- The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
 REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
- 02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the following approved plans received by the Local Planning Authority on 11 August 2014:

2014/36/P2 'Plans and Elevations as Proposed' 2014/36/P3 'Block Plan'

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

03. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall be of similar appearance to those of the existing dwelling.

REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. [Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS7, BFBLP 'Saved' Policy EN20]

- 04. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without modification), no windows at first floor level or above shall be installed on the northwestern facing side elevation of the first floor side extension hereby permitted.

 REASON: In the interests of the residential amenity of the neighbouring property of 34 Pakenham Road, Bracknell.

 [Relevant Policy: BFBLP 'Saved' Policy EN20].
- 05. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the parking within the garage has been provided in accordance with drawing 2014/36/P2 'Plans and Elevations as Proposed' received by the Local Planning Authority on 11 August 2014. The garage shall, notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended) (or any order revoking or reenacting that Order with or without modification), thereafter be retained for the use of the parking of vehicles at all times.
 REASON: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority's vehicle parking standards are met.
 [Relevant Policy: BFBLP 'Saved' Policy M9, Core Strategy DPD CS23]
- 67. Application 14/01008/FUL Street Record, Drovers Way, Bracknell Convert grass area into four parking spaces.

The Committee noted:

- The comments of Bracknell Town Council
- A petition with 19 signatories raising no objections to the parking spaces however raising objections to the knee high fencing opposite the site which will remove parking for up to six cars.

Upon being put to the vote it was **RESOLVED** that the application be **APPROVED** subject to the following conditions:-

- 01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
- 02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the following approved plans received by the Local Planning Authority on 22 October 2014: drawing no. 210/R REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.
- The development shall not be begun until a scheme depicting soft 03. landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include a 3 year post planting maintenance schedule. All planting comprised in the soft landscaping works shall be carried out and completed in full accordance with the approved scheme, in the nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) to the completion of the development or prior to the occupation of any part of the approved development, whichever is sooner. As a minimum, the quality of all hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 4428:1989 'Code Of Practice For General Landscape Operations' or any subsequent revision. All trees and other plants included within the approved details shall be healthy, well formed specimens of a minimum quality that is compatible with British Standard 3936:1992 (Part 1) 'Specifications For Trees & Shrubs' and British Standard 4043 (where applicable) or any subsequent revision. Any trees or other plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development, die, are removed, uprooted, are significantly damaged, become diseased or deformed, shall be replaced during the nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) with others of the same size, species and quality as approved. REASON: In the interests of good landscape design and the visual amenity of the area.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CSDPD CS7]

68. Application 14/01026/FUL Street Record, Deepdale, Bracknell Convert amenity area into parking spaces.

The Committee noted:

• The comments of Bracknell Town Council

Upon being put to the vote it was **RESOLVED** that the application be **APPROVED** subject to the following conditions:-

- 01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
- 02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the following approved plans received by the Local Planning Authority on 18 September 2014: drawing no. 219 REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.
- 03. The development shall not be begun until a scheme depicting soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include a 3 year post planting maintenance schedule. All planting comprised in the soft landscaping works shall be carried out and completed in full accordance with the approved scheme, in the nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) to the completion of the development or prior to the occupation of any part of the approved development, whichever is sooner. As a minimum, the quality of all hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 4428:1989 'Code Of Practice For General Landscape Operations' or any subsequent revision. All trees and other plants included within the approved details shall be healthy, well formed specimens of a minimum quality that is compatible with British Standard 3936:1992 (Part 1) 'Specifications For Trees & Shrubs' and British Standard 4043 (where applicable) or any subsequent revision. Any trees or other plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development, die, are removed, uprooted, are significantly damaged, become diseased or deformed, shall be replaced during the nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) with others of the same size, species and quality as approved. REASON: In the interests of good landscape design and the visual amenity of the area.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CSDPD CS7]

- 04. The development hereby permitted (including initial site-clearance) shall not be begun until a detailed scheme, and programme for its implementation for the protection of existing trees in accordance with British Standard 5837:2012 'Trees In Relation To Construction Recommendations' (or any subsequent revision), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted scheme shall include proposals for the phasing of its implementation so that protection is provided from the commencement of demolition or site clearance works (whichever is the sooner), through to the construction works and the completion of hard landscaping works. The submitted scheme shall include the following:
 - a) Accurate trunk positions and canopy spreads of all existing trees
 - b) Minimum 'Root Protection Areas' of all existing trees
 - c) Plans of a minimum scale of 1:200 showing the proposed locations of protective barrier/s, constructed in accordance with Section 6 (Figures 2 or 3) of BS 5837:2012, to include appropriate weatherproof tree protection area signage (such as "Keep Out Construction Exclusion Zone") securely fixed to the outside of the protective fencing structure at regular intervals.

- d) Proposed ground protection measures in accordance with Section 6 (Figure 3) of BS 5837:2012.
- e) Annotated minimum distances between fencing and trunks of retained trees at regular intervals.
- f) Illustration/s of the proposed fencing structure/s to be erected. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme and programme.

REASON: In order to safeguard trees and other vegetation considered to be worthy of retention in the interests of the visual amenity of the area.

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN1 and EN20, CSDPD CS7]

- 05. The protective fencing and other protection measures specified by condition 4 shall be erected prior to the commencement of any development works, including any initial clearance, and shall be maintained fully intact and (in the case of the fencing) upright, in its approved locations at all times, until the completion of all building operations on the site. No activity of any description must occur at any time within these areas including but not restricted to the following:
 - a) No mixing of cement or any other materials.
 - b) Storage or disposal of any soil, building materials, rubble, machinery, fuel, chemicals, liquids waste residues or materials/debris of any other description.
 - c) Siting of any temporary structures of any description including site office/sales buildings, temporary car parking facilities, porta-loos, storage compounds or hard standing areas of any other description.
 - d) Soil/turf stripping, raising/lowering of existing levels, excavation or alterations to the existing surfaces/ ground conditions of any other description.
 - e) Installation/siting of any underground services, temporary or otherwise including; drainage, water, gas, electricity, telephone, television, external lighting or any associated ducting.
 - f) Parking/use of tracked or wheeled machinery or vehicles of any description.

In addition to the protection measures specified above,

- a) No fires shall be lit within 20 metres of the trunks of any trees or the centre line of any hedgerow shown to be retained.
- b) No signs, cables, fixtures or fittings of any other description shall be attached to any part of any retained tree.

REASON: In order to safeguard trees and other vegetation considered to be worthy of retention in the interests of the visual amenity of the area.

69. Miscellaneous Item: Application 13/00094/COND - Details Pursuant to Condition 18 (Lighting) of Planning Permission 12/00911/FUL

Land at 5A Faringdon Drive, Bracknell, RG12 9NT

The Committee considered a report that determined the details submitted pursuant to Condition 18 of Planning Permission 12/00911/FUL in light of an objection received from local residents.

The Committee noted:-

• The supplementary report of the Head of Development Management tabled at the meeting.

 A letter from a neighbouring property on behalf of 13 other properties objecting to street lights and supporting bollard lighting. Concerns were raised that street lighting would increase light pollution and harm the rural character of the area.

Upon being put to the vote it was **RESOLVED** that the following details submitted pursuant to condition 18 of Planning Permission 12/00911/FUL under reference 13/00911/FUL be **APPROVED:-**

- Site finishes plan 40-06 P7
- Lamp: Iridium SGS253 SON-T 100W Closed CT-POT Glass bowl cover on 5m column.

70. Miscellaneous Item: Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order (TPO) Land at 5A Faringdon Drive, Bracknell, RG12 9NT - 2014

The Committee considered a report that asked them to confirm a Tree Preservation Order (TPO 1163).

The Committee noted:-

- The supplementary report of the Head of Development Management tabled at the meeting.
- One letter of support and one letter raising objections. Concerns were raised around the poor quality of the trees as a result a lack of tree maintenance, the continuation of a TPO would impede this. Concerns were raised that the height of the trees made them a hazard to neighbouring properties and the amenity of the trees was challenged.

Upon being put to the vote it was **RESOLVED** that the Tree Preservation Order TPO 1163 be confirmed and **APPROVED**.

CHAIRMAN